
Date of Notice:  09/23/2024 Page 1 of 2 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
Thursday, September 26, 2024 4:00 p.m.- 6:00 p.m. 

Kensington Community Center-Meeting Room 3, 
59 Arlington Avenue, Kensington, CA 94707 (and hybrid) 

How to Submit Public Comments: 
Prior to the meeting: Members of the public may submit public comment by emailing the Chair and 
Board Clerk by emailing: public.comment@kensingtonfire.org. by 11:00am the day of the meeting. 
Such comments will be noted as received and their contents orally summarized; however, if you 
attend the meeting, you will need to make your comment during the meeting. 

During the meeting: Public comment will be taken on each agenda item, and comment on issues 
not on the agenda will be taken at the beginning of the meeting (regular meetings only). Members 
of the public who attend the meeting either in-person or via Zoom are allowed to provide public 
comment verbally with a maximum allowance of 3 minutes per individual comment, subject to the 
Chair’s discretion. Each member of the public will be allotted the same maximum number of 
minutes to speak as set by the Chair, except that public speakers using interpretation assistance 
will be allowed to testify for twice the amount of the public testimony time limit (California 
Government Code section 54954.3(a)). 

In-person:  At points in the meeting when the meeting chair requests public comment, 
members of the public participating in-person can simply raise their hand to be recognized. 
Via Zoom:  If participating via internet, please click the “raise hand” feature located within 
the Zoom application screen. If connected via telephone, please dial “*9” (star, nine). 

Accommodations:  To enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title 1), if you need special assistance to 
participate, please email public.comment@kensingtonfire.org 48 hours prior to the meeting.  

Agenda and supplemental materials:  This agenda is available on the KFPD website under the 
relevant meeting date:  https://www.kensingtonfire.org/emergency-preparedness-committee. 
Please note that supplemental materials will be posted on the website with the agenda as soon as 
they are available prior to the meeting. Additional information and/or materials may be presented at 
the meeting itself. 

PLEASE NOTE:  The District will use Zoom to allow virtual access to this meeting. This additional 
means of access is provided as a courtesy to the public and is not required by law. The meeting will 
continue to be conducted at the physical address provided above regardless of any interruption or 
failure of the Zoom transmission. 

Hybrid Meeting Option Internet Address: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85150861972?pwd=bbSSan5KltjFbd9MAY41iMuSqvH4RB.1 

Telephone Access: 
(669) 444-9171  or  (719) 359-4580  or  (253) 205-0468

Zoom Webinar ID: 851 5086 1972 
Passcode: 112233

EPC Agenda Packet Page 1 of 17



KFPD Emergency Preparedness Committee 
September 26, 2024 Meeting Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Directors: President Levine, Vice President Danielle Madugo
Public Members: Douglas Bevington, Lisa Caronna, Katie Gluck, Adrianne Johnson, Peter
Liddell, Paul Moss, David Spath
Staff: General Manager Mary Morris-Mayorga
Consultant: Emergency Preparedness Coordinator Johnny Valenzuela

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
Under “Public Comment,” the public may address the Committee on any subject not listed
on the agenda. Please address your comments to the Committee and not to staff and/or the
audience. Each speaker may address the Committee once under Public Comment for a limit
of three minutes. The public will be given an opportunity to speak on each agenda item and
once the public comment portion of any item on this agenda has been closed by the
Committee, no further comment from the public will be permitted unless authorized by the
Committee. The Committee cannot act on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore,
cannot respond to non-agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to
provide general information. Committee members will also have an opportunity to comment
on items not on the agenda.

3. ADOPTION OF CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approval of Minutes of the EPC regular meeting on 08/22/2024 (Supporting Material)

4. PRESENTATION
a. Communications, repeaters, and mesh networking – Katie Calvert/Squishy Robotics

The committee will receive this presentation including a YouTube video about how first
responders are using Squishy Robotics sensor robots and special guest, tensegrity robot.
Action = Presentation, discussion

5. OLD BUSINESS
a. Report back on discussions related to potential parking changes – Morris-Mayorga

Action = Discussion, direction, and motion

6. NEW BUSINESS
a. Review Responses to the Report of 2023-2024 Contra Costa County Civil Grand

Jury: The CCC Community Warning System – Morris-Mayorga (Supporting Material)
The draft resolution was brought to the Board of Directors on August 21st and no action
was taken pending the responses by the County Board of Supervisors and Sheriff’s
Office in order to incorporate those into the District’s response.  The EPC will review
responses and draft a resolution as determined.
Action = Discussion, direction, and motion

b. Nixle Usage – Moss
Action = Discussion, direction, and motion

7. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS COORDINATOR’S REPORT – Valenzuela

8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The list of future agenda items discussed during the meeting will be summarized here.

9. ADJOURNMENT
The next regular meeting of the Emergency Preparedness Committee of the Kensington
Fire Protection District will be held on October 24, 2024 at 4:00pm in person (Committee
members) at the Kensington Community Center with hybrid option for attendees (guest
speakers, public), unless noticed otherwise per the Brown Act.

EPC Agenda Packet Page 2 of 17



Page 1 of 2 

 KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

DATE/TIME:  August 22, 2024, 4:00PM 

LOCATION:  Kensington Community Center, 59 Arlington Avenue, Kensington (and hybrid) 

PRESENT:  Directors: President Daniel Levine, Vice President Danielle Madugo 

Public Members: Douglas Bevington, Lisa Caronna, Katie Gluck, Paul Moss, David 
Spath 

Staff: General Manager Mary Morris-Mayorga 

Consultant: Emergency Preparedness Coordinator Johnny Valenzuela 

ABSENT:  Public Members: Adrianne Johnson, Peter Liddell 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

President Levine called the regular meeting to order at 4:11 p.m. and confirmed the roll call. 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT (00:00:50)

Public comment was read from Alan Siegel. 

3. ADOPTION OF CONSENT ITEMS (00:03:15)

a. Approval of Minutes EPC regular meeting:  07/25/2024

Moved/Seconded: Madugo/Levine Action: Approved minutes of the 7/25/2024 meeting 
Ayes: Bevington, Caronna, Gluck, Levine, Madugo, Moss Noes: None Abstain: Spath 
Absent: Johnson Liddell 

Video Time Stamped: 00:05:50 

4. OLD BUSINESS - None

5. NEW BUSINESS (00:06:16)

a. Discussion and recommendation to the Board of action KFPD could take
towards implementing the parking changes requested by residents (00:06:16)

 Discussion with police is needed on what the nature of any formal agreement for
parking exceptions on York is and if it could be replicated.

 If action with Contra Costa County is needed, discuss with Monish in Public Works.
 Then, set a meeting with Kensington (GMs/Chiefs) to discuss with the County.

b. Contra Costa County’s reported response to Grand Jury Report (00:59:13)
The draft resolution was brought to the Board of Directors on August 21st with no
action taken pending responses by County Board of Supervisors and Sheriff’s
Office in order to incorporate those into the District’s response.  This item will be
agendized for the next EPC meeting.

c. Provide EPC Workplan Activity Updates – None

EPC Agenda Packet Page 3 of 17



KFPD EPC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 22, 2024 

Page 2 of 2 

6. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS COORDINATOR’S REPORT (01:16:40)

President Levine established a sub-committee on the Hazardous Vegetation Removal
Reimbursement Grant Program:  Lisa Caronna, David Spath, and Paul Moss.

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS (03:36:36)

Discuss status on potential parking and review responses to Grand Jury Report.

8. ADJOURNMENT: President Levine adjourned the meeting at 5:42 p.m.

The next regular meeting of the Emergency Preparedness Committee of the Kensington Fire 
Protection District will be held on September 26, 2024 at 4:00pm in person (Committee 
members) at the Kensington Community Center with hybrid option for attendees (guest 
speakers, public), unless noticed otherwise per the Brown Act. 

MINUTES PREPARED BY: Mary Morris-Mayorga 

These minutes were approved at the Emergency Preparedness Committee Meeting of the 
Kensington Fire Protection District on September 26, 2024.  

Attest: ______________________________________________ 
Emergency Preparedness Committee Member 

EPC Agenda Packet Page 4 of 17



XX/XX/2024 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 2024-XX 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENSINGTON FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT SUPPORTING FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

IN THE REPORT OF 2023-2024 CONTRA COSTA COUNTY CIVIL GRAND JURY: 
THE CCC COMMUNITY WARNING SYSTEM 

WHEREAS, the Kensington Fire Protection District is a special district organized 
under the laws of the State of California and includes within its jurisdiction all properties in 
the unincorporated portion of the community of Kensington; and  

WHEREAS, the Kensington Fire Protection District’s mission is to provide the 
highest level of service to Kensington in order to protect the lives, property, and 
environment of the community from the disastrous effects of fires, medical emergencies, 
natural disasters, and other hazardous conditions; and  

WHEREAS, the Kensington Fire Protection District’s Emergency Preparedness 
Committee reviewed and recommends supporting key findings and recommendations of 
The Report Of 2023-2024 Contra Costa County Civil Grand Jury:  The CCC Community 
Warning System. 
Findings 
F11. Outdoor warning systems supplement other warning tools by providing acoustic (voice or siren 

sounds) to people who are outdoors. 
F12. Long Range Acoustic Devices (LRADs) can broadcast audible instructions to people outdoors 

when cell phones and other alert-receiving devices may not be working or heard. 
F13. A sound study is needed to evaluate where, if at all, LRADs might be effective in Contra Costa 

County. 
F14. Sites where LRADs could be located would need to be identified for any areas in which 

LRADs are found to be effective. 
F15. The County would incur a cost for a sound study on the feasibility to deploy LRADs within the 

County. 
F16. There is no estimate of the cost for an independent, third party to conduct a feasibility study 

for the use of LRADs within the County. 
Recommendations 
R3. By December 31, 2024, the Board of Supervisors should commission a sound study by an 

independent, third party to determine the feasibility of deploying LRADs in any areas of the 
County. 

R4. By June 30, 2025, the Office of the Sheriff should train employees in the Sheriff’s dispatch 
center to operate the CWS. 

R5. By March 31, 2025, the Office of the Sheriff should implement a plan to conduct testing of the 
CWS to determine the causes of the failure of CWS alerts to reach all the intended recipients 
of test alerts within 10 – 20 minutes of the time the alert is sent. 

Agenda Item 06aDraft for EPC Discussion/Review/Revision

EPC Agenda Packet Page 5 of 17



XX/XX/2024 Page 2 of 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors hereby supports 
the aforementioned findings and recommendations of The Report Of 2023-2024 Contra 
Costa County Civil Grand Jury:  The CCC Community Warning System. 

The foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Kensington 
Fire Protection District on the XX day of ________ 2024 by the following vote of the Board. 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

_________________________ 
Daniel Levine, President 

__________________________ 
Rick Artis, Secretary 

EPC Agenda Packet Page 6 of 17



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY CIVIL GRAND JURY REPORT NO. 2402 
"The Contra Costa County Community Warning System: Will Everyone Get a Warning in 

Time?" 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ RESPONSE 

FINDINGS – California Penal Code Section 933.05(a) requires a response to the designated 
findings of the Grand Jury. 

RESPONSES TO FINDINGS: 

F1. The CWS is used in response to emergencies in the County. 

Response:  Agree with the finding. 

F2. About 30% of County residents have created a CWS account and entered their 
contact data. 

Response:  Agree with this finding. 

F3. The approximately 70% of residents who haven't registered with CWS may not 
receive any alerts in the event that other alerting tools not reliant on registration in 
the CWS - WEA, radios, and TVs - are not activated. 

Response:  Disagree with this finding. Though the County agrees that approximately 30% of 
County residents have registered with CWS, it does not correlate with an 
approximate 70% of residents who may not receive any alerts. Each emergency 
alert is tailored to target individuals in specific areas that may be at risk or in danger; 
therefore, a fixed percentage of residents that may or may not receive alerts in a 
specific geographic area would be an oversimplification. Furthermore, alerts and 
notifications include residents that have self-registered with CWS, as well as those 
whose contact information was obtained through Reverse 911 ATT data and will 
continue to be obtained via contracts with other utility providers, as permitted by 
federal and state laws. 

EPC Agenda Packet Page 7 of 17



F4. Additional redundancies in the processes and operation of the CWS can increase the 
potential for more people to receive timely alerts. 

Response: Agree with the finding. 

F5. To enable the redundancy of other alerting tools - sending recorded voice messages 
to cell and VoIP phones, text messages, and emails - the contact data for these devices 
must be registered in the CWS. 

Response:  Disagree with this finding. Contact data from CWS includes residents that have self-
registered with CWS, as well as those whose contact information was obtained 
through Reverse 911 and contracts with utility providers, as permitted by federal 
and state laws.  

CWS currently has many redundancies enabled, which include three phone 
numbers, three text message numbers, and three emails within one CWS profile. In 
addition, Wireless Emergency Alerts (WEA), Emergency Alert System (EAS), and 
sirens for hazardous materials incidents have redundant procedures in place. CWS 
alerts and notifications are also posted online (CWSAlerts.com) and via social 
media postings on “X” (Twitter) and Facebook, all of which do not require CWS 
registrations. County public information officers and external public information 
officers are notified immediately of all CWS alerts and notifications, which are 
distributed through their respective contacts, websites, and/or social media 
accounts. 

F6. Phone numbers and associated physical addresses can be loaded into the 
CWS for all businesses and residents in the County from the various telecom 
providers that serve the County. 

Response:  Partially disagree with the finding. Contact information can be loaded into the CWS 
for most businesses and residents in the County. In addition to CWS self-
registrations and ongoing public education campaigns to encourage registration, the 
County has loaded and will continue to load business and resident contact 
information in the CWS via Reverse 911 and contracts with utility providers, as 
permitted by federal and state laws.  

F7. In an opt-out warning system, County residents and businesses that do not want 
their phone and/or email data in the CWS can request to have their data removed. 

Response:  Agree with this finding. 

F8. The reliance of the CWS on voluntary registration creates a risk that too few 
residents will register their phones and email in CWS. 

EPC Agenda Packet Page 8 of 17



Response:  Disagree with this finding. In addition to the County’s multi-faceted resident CWS 
alert and notification efforts as described in F.5 and F.6, approximately 93-98% of 
new mobile phones have various emergency and public safety alerts activated by 
default and can be turned off by the user if desired. In July 2022 the Cellular 
Telecommunications and Internet Association (CTIA) found that over 60% of active 
smartphones support Enhanced Geo-Targeting, an increase of 34% from the 
previous year. Given the reported handset lifetime of 35 months estimated by 
Strategy Analytics in June 2022, and the annual and quarterly trend in the share of 
WEA 3.0 capable smartphones, the CTIA concludes that such handsets amount to 
a majority of active smartphones in use in 2022. 1 

F9. An opt-out system would incur annual costs for data subscriptions on the order of 
$100,000.  

Response:  Disagree with this finding. The County cannot confirm the source of the $100,000 
data subscription referenced in the Grand Jury’s report. 

F10. An opt-out system would incur an initial cost to educate residents and businesses 
of the CWS system change on the order of $500,000. 

Response:  Disagree with this finding. The County cannot confirm the source of the $500,000 
for initial costs referenced in the Grand Jury’s report. 

F.11 Outdoor warning systems supplement other warning tools by providing acoustic
(voice or siren sounds) to people who are outdoors.

Response:  Agree with this finding. 

F.12 Long Range Acoustic Devices (LRADs) can broadcast audible instructions to people
outdoors when cell phones and other alert-receiving devices may not be working or
heard.

Response:  Agree with this finding. The County agrees that LRADs can broadcast audible 
instructions to people outdoors but cannot verify they are audible or heard by 
people outdoors when cell phones and other alert-receiving devices may not be 
working or heard. Various factors could impact LRAD broadcasts, including 
geographic location of LRADs and the potential reliance of LRAD technology on cell 
phone towers for acoustic alerts and notifications. 

1 https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/practitioners/integrated-public-alert-warning-
system/public/wireless-emergency-alerts/geographic-accuracy-wea 

EPC Agenda Packet Page 9 of 17

https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/practitioners/integrated-public-alert-warning-system/public/wireless-emergency-alerts/geographic-accuracy-wea
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/practitioners/integrated-public-alert-warning-system/public/wireless-emergency-alerts/geographic-accuracy-wea


F.13 A sound study is needed to evaluate where, if at all, LRADs might be effective in
Contra Costa County.

Response: Agree with this finding. 

F.14 Sites where LRADs could be located would need to be identified for any areas in
which LRADs are found to be effective.

Response: Agree with this finding. 

F.15 The County would incur a cost for a sound study on the feasibility to deploy LRADs
within the County.

Response: Agree with this finding. 

F.16 There is no estimate of the cost for an independent, third party to conduct a
feasibility study for the use of LRADs within the County.

Response: Agree with this finding. 

F.17 LRADs would be part of the County's emergency response warning tools.

Response:  Partially disagree with this finding. LRADs are not currently a part of the County’s 
emergency response warning tools. Until further studied, the County cannot confirm 
whether LRADs would be a meaningful addition to the County’s emergency 
response warning tools.  

F.18 Costs related to emergency response can be funded from Measure X revenue.

Response: Agree with this finding. 

F.29 The CWS staff evaluates its systems and processes for risks.

Response: Agree with this finding. 

F.30 The County has not engaged a firm with expertise in risk analysis of community
warning systems to conduct a comprehensive risk analysis of the CWS since the County
took control of the system in 2001.

Response: Agree with this finding. 

F.31 The current process for improving the design and operation of the CWS for alerts
not related to releases of hazardous chemicals resides within the Sheriff’s Office.

EPC Agenda Packet Page 10 of 17



Response: Agree with this finding. 

F.32 There is no formal body or process that brings together emergency response
experts from emergency response agencies in the County to focus and advise solely on
the design and operation of the CWS.

Response: Disagree with this finding. Though not the sole focus or topic of discussion, the 
Board of Supervisors’ Industrial Safety Ordinance / Community Warning System Ad 
Hoc Committee and the County’s Emergency Services Policy Board (ESPB), in 
which the County Administrator serves as the Chair and the Sheriff-Coroner serves 
as the Vice Chair, provide forums for emergency response experts from all 
emergency response agencies in the County to advise on the design and operation 
of the CWS. 

F.33 The functioning and effectiveness of the CWS can be improved, and operational
risks reduced, with the implementation of a CWS advisory body.

Response:  Disagree with this finding. There is no need to establish a CWS advisory body. 
Existing County forums as mentioned in the response to F.32 above, are the most 
appropriate for addressing concerns on the functionality and effectiveness of the 
CWS and any improvements and operational risk prevention measures. 

RECOMMENDATIONS - California Penal Code Section 933.05(b) requires a response to the 
designated recommendations of the Grand Jury. 

RESPONSES TO RECOMMENDATIONS: 

R.1. By March 31, 2025, the Board of Supervisors should develop a plan to modify the
CWS so that it automatically registers all available contact data for all County
residents and businesses into its system and provides a mechanism for residents and
businesses to opt out of the automatic registration process.

Response: The recommendation has been implemented. In addition to direct CWS registrations 
and ongoing public education campaigns to encourage registration, the County 
CWS automatically registers contact data into its system via Reverse 911 and 
contracts with utility providers. Automatic registrations are done as permitted by 
federal and state laws and have a mechanism in place for businesses and residents 
to opt out. Since the CWS includes both opt in and opt out approaches, there is no 
need to develop a separate plan to modify the CWS system as recommended. The 
County is currently working on expanding automatic registration contact data 
sources, which may include power, water, and other utility companies, in 
accordance with State law. 

EPC Agenda Packet Page 11 of 17



R.2. By December 31, 2025, the Board of Supervisors should complete the
implementation of the plan to modify the CWS so that it automatically registers all
available contact data for all County residents and businesses into its system and
provides a mechanism for residents and businesses to opt out of the automatic
registration process.

Response: The recommendation has been implemented. Please see response to R.1. 

R.3. By December 31, 2024, the Board of Supervisors should commission a sound study
by an independent, third party to determine the feasibility of deploying LRADs in any
areas of the County.

Response: The recommendation requires further analysis. In addition to the statewide impacts 
of wildfires2, Contra Costa County has been negatively impacted by the California 
home insurance crisis, heat events and flooding resulting in damage to public and 
private infrastructure. Contra Costa County has also seen an increase in its FEMA 
National Risk Index score. Specifically, Contra Costa County has a current 
composite FEMA National Risk Index score of 99.6% and a FEMA Annual Loss 
score of 99.6%.3 This means that Contra Costa County falls into the highest 
disaster risk category compared to other counties throughout the nation. 

For these reasons, a comprehensive study of the County’s emergency 
management/disaster response function, including planning, communications, such 
as LRADs, public outreach, training would be a more prudent path to understand 
the County’s disaster risk exposure; however, further analysis is required to 
determine an appropriate and manageable scope for such a review. Over the past 
five years, the counties of Alameda, Marin, Sonoma and Monterey have conducted 
assessments of their respective emergency management/disaster response 
functions. The Emergency Services Policy Board, which also serves as the 
County’s Disaster Council, is the best situated to determine and provide 
recommendations on the scope of such a study to the Board of Supervisors for final 
approval and direction. 

R.6. By June 30, 2025, the Board of Supervisors should execute a contract with a third-
party consulting firm to conduct a comprehensive risk analysis of the CWS, including its
processes, procedures, contracts, hardware, and software.

Response: The recommendation requires further analysis. Please see response to R.3. 

R.7. By March 31, 2025, the Board of Supervisors should direct the County's Chief

2 https://calfire-
forestry.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=988d431a42b242b29d89597ab693d008 
3 https://hazards.fema.gov/nri/report/viewer?dataLOD=Counties&dataIDs=C06013 

EPC Agenda Packet Page 12 of 17

https://hazards.fema.gov/nri/report/viewer?dataLOD=Counties&dataIDs=C06013


Administrative Officer to establish a CWS advisory subcommittee of the Emergency 
Services Policy Board. 

Response: The recommendation will not be implemented. The County’s Emergency Services 
Policy Board (ESPB) as a whole can address CWS topics. The ESPB includes the 
County Administrator as the Chair and the Sheriff-Coroner as the Vice Chair, as 
well as a multi-disciplinary group of department heads (or designees) from the 
various County departments involved in emergency and community warning 
services. A briefing on CWS activities was recently received by the ESPB at its 
March 12, 2024 meeting. Additionally, the Board of Supervisors has an Industrial 
Safety Ordinance / Community Warning System Ad Hoc Committee, which 
frequently discusses areas related to the CWS. 

EPC Agenda Packet Page 13 of 17



EPC Agenda Packet Page 14 of 17



EPC Agenda Packet Page 15 of 17



EPC Agenda Packet Page 16 of 17



EPC Agenda Packet Page 17 of 17


	20240926_06a Supporting Findings & Recommendations of CCC Grand Jurty Rpt_pkt.pdf
	20240926_05b Supporting Findings & Recommendations of CCC Grand Jurty Rpt_CCC BOS Response
	FINDINGS – California Penal Code Section 933.05(a) requires a response to the designated findings of the Grand Jury.
	RESPONSES TO FINDINGS:

	20240926_05b Supporting Findings & Recommendations of CCC Grand Jurty Rpt_CCC Sherif's Response
	20240926_05b Supporting Findings & Recommendations of CCC Grand Jurty Rpt_Resolution 2024-XX




